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1819: The “Großhandelshaus Vonwiller” [wholesale business] of Milan establishes an agency at Haslach. 
Formerly self-employed weavers start working for Vonwiller, are furnished with yarn and sometimes 
also looms, work at home and deliver the finished goods to the agency. A fleet of carts and 300 hor-
ses convey the goods to Italy. On their way back they bring cotton, silk and wool.

1833: Ground breaking for the erection of a factory building on a granite outcrop of the rock face above 
the River Mühl. 6 houses in the district called “auf der Stelzen” are pulled down, on their founda-
tion an impressive industrial complex is erected. In the following years the business is conducted 
as a putting-out enterprise. Approx. 300 to 400 people work in the factory building proper, a further 
200 to 300 weavers work at home. Daily working time in the factory is12 hours except on Sundays. 
Also children are employed for a minimal wage.

1854: Vonwiller is the first enterprise in Haslach to int-
roduce mechanical looms. Until well into the 20th 
century weaving is done on both hand looms and 
mechanical looms. 

1910: The precarious situation of the textile workers (long working hours, low wages, no sickness benefits …) leads 
to extreme social tension and becomes the breeding ground for the formation of Social-Democratic and 
Christian workers unions. In May 1910 the female and male workers of the Vonwiller, Fölser and Pöschl (a 
leather factory at Rohrbach) companies go on strike. As a consequence they are dismissed and locked out of 
the factories. The tough negotiations last until July, the result being the introduction of the 10-hour working 
day and wage increases.

1888: The opening of the Mühlkreisbahn, a railway line through the Mühlviertel, forms the basis for Vonwiller’s  international trade re-
lations. The company has its peak time in the years to follow, and exports its famous and high-quality waistcoat fabrics to coun-
tries such as Syria, Egypt, Turkey, Persia, Cyprus, Scandinavia, the Netherlands, Spain, Portugal, the USA, Canada and South 
America, and even to England, the then mecca of textiles. A great number of sample books bear witness to the exceptional qua-
lity and intricate patterns of the fabrics that were produced at this time.

 1930 onwards: Vonwiller is hard hit by the effects of World War I and the 
world economic crisis. Due to the miserable situation one 
third of the company is sold to Franz Pat from Vienna.

1938 onwards: During World War II the Vonwiller company loses nearly all its international contacts. 
After the end of the war and before the Mühlviertel is occupied by the Russians, Von-
willer succeeds in moving all the looms and equipment to Salzburg. Only in 1955 they 
return to Haslach. Due to an extreme shortage of workers after the occupation it 
takes decades for the company to re-establish itself.

1970 onwards: Vonwiller succeed in establishing itself again on the international market by specialising. 
On the one hand they make household textiles, in particular table cloths, on the other hand 
fabrics for the industry producing off-the-peg traditional dress. In the 1970s they also pro-
duce a pants-collection under the brand name “Steve-Jeans” followed by a skiing clothes 
range by the name of “Hochficht”, later “G. Fölser”, with an export quota of over 60%. In the 
1980s and 1990s the demand for ready-to-wear clothing decreases continuously. 

1885: Johann Heinrich Vonwiller marries Clara Fölser, daughter of the 
owner of a bleaching and dressing plant in Lichtenau near Has-
lach. The two businesses will be closely connected economically 
in the future.

1999: The Vonwiller factory is closed down two years after declaring bankruptcy. Around 
50 workers and employees lose their jobs. In the same year the municipality of 
Haslach acquires the building which is right in the centre of Haslach and in dire 
need of renovation. Together with the local architectural office “Arkade” plans for 
a revitalisation commence.

2000 onwards: With the support of money from the EU and the Province of Upper 
Austria the building complex is profoundly renovated in the following 
years and adapted for other uses. In 2005 the adjoining building of the 
former “Buntweberei Obermüller” is also bought and incorporated 
into the overall concept. Today the former factory is home to event-
halls, a restaurant, a music school, various companies and social 
services, the museum “Mechanische Klangfabrik” and from 2012 the 
Textile Centre Haslach.

1814/15: After Lombardy and Venetia became part of Austria as a result of 
the Congress of Vienna, business connections with the area that 
is now Italy intensify. Alois Fririon, the purchaser of the trading 
house of Vonwiller in Milan, travels regularly to the weekly mar-
kets at Haslach in order to buy linen from local weavers to be sold 
in Italy.
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